
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

December 5, 2017–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the November 7, 2017 Planning Board
Rezoning and Regular Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for November 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for December 2017.
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-06

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioner
(BCC) for adoption, an ordinance amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map
for a Small Scale Amendment, SSA-2017-06.

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

A.   CU Standards fo Mobile Homes in MDR Zoning Discussion.
 

B.   Signs Discussion.



 

8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
January 9, 2018 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 12/05/2017  

Agenda Item:
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the November 7, 2017 Planning Board Rezoning and
Regular Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for November 2017.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for December 2017.

Attachments
Draft November 7, 2017 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes
Draft November 7, 2017 Planning Board Regular Meeting Minutes
Monthly Action Follow-Up
Six Month Outlook



D R A F T
RESUMÉ OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD QUASI-JUDICIAL

REZONING
 November 7, 2017

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:30 A.M. – 10:04 A.M)

Present: Jay Ingwell   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Alan Gray   
  Patty Hightower   
  Eric Fears   
  William Clay   
  Stephen Opalenik   
Absent: Reid Rushing
  Wayne Briske, Chairman
Staff Present: Allyson Cain, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Jay Ingwell.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Reid Rushing (ABSENT) 
  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 

 

4.  Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by William Clay 

Motion was made to accept the Rezoning Planning Board meeting packet
for November 7, 2017. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Reid Rushing (ABSENT) 
  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 

 

5.  Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

6.  Public Hearings.



 

A.     Case #: Z-2017-17
Applicant: Wanda French-Hawkins,

Agent for Jason Hawkins,
Owner

Address: 6355 Mockingbird Lane
Property
Size:

4.86 (+/-) acres

From: MDR, Medium Density
Residential district (10
du/acre)

To: HDMU, High Density
Mixed-use district (25
du/acre)

No planning board member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No planning board member acknowledged any ex parte communication
regarding this item. 

No planning board member abstained from voting on this matter due to any
conflict of interest.

  

 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to direct staff to develop conditional use standards for
manufactured homes in MDR zoning district. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Reid Rushing (ABSENT) 
  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to put the case in abeyance until other actions are
taken. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Reid Rushing (ABSENT) 
  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 

 

7.  Adjournment.
 



D R A F T
MINUTES OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

 November 7, 2017

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(10:16 A.M. – 11:39 A.M.)

Present: Jay Ingwell   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Alan Gray   
  Patty Hightower   
  Eric Fears   
  William Clay   
  Stephen Opalenik   
Absent: Reid Rushing
  Wayne Briske, Chairman
Staff Present: Allyson Cain, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Griffin Vickery, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
John Fisher, Senior Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Alan Gray 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved



 
Other: Reid Rushing (ABSENT) 
  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 

 

4.     
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the October 3, 2017 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for October 2017

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for November 2017.

  

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by William Clay 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the October 3, 2017,
Regular Planning Board Meeting. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Reid Rushing (ABSENT) 
  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 

 

5.  Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to accept the Regular Planning Board meeting packet
for November 7, 2017. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Reid Rushing (ABSENT) 
  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 

 

6.  Public Hearings.
 

A.      A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of anLDC Ordinance Amending,
Design Standards Manual, Chapter 2, Section 3-2.3

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 2 of the Design Standards Manual,Plans and
construction requirements.

  

 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Reid Rushing (ABSENT) 



  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
 

B.      A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an LDC Ordinance Amending
Chapter 5, General Development Standards.
That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 5, General Development Standards, Article 3, Division
of Land, to modify the family conveyance exception.

  

 
  Motion by Alan Gray, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to recommend approval of the changes shown to the
BCC. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Reid Rushing (ABSENT) 
  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 

 

7.  Action/Discussion/Info Items.
 

A.     Cargo Containers Discussion.

Discussion was had by Board Members, Staff, and citizens. Will continue to
discuss this item at future meetings.

  

 

B.  Minimum Lot Widths.

Will discuss more at future meetings.
 

8.  Public Forum.
 

9.  Director's Review.
 

10.  County Attorney's Report.
 

11.  Scheduling of Future Meetings.
 

 The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
December 5, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

12.  Announcements/Communications.
 

13.  Adjournment.
 



1 
 

 
Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  November 22, 2017 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for December 2017 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of 
November. Some items include information from previous months in cases where final disposition 
has not yet been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of report 
preparation date. Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial hearing on 
the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
• Text Amendments: 

 
• Map Amendments: 

 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
Residential Uses in Zoning Districts 
09-6-16 PB recommended more review by staff 
  On hold – waiting for input from County Attorney’s Office 
 
HC/LI & FLU Inconsistencies 
09-05-17 PB recommended approval 
11-30-17 BCC meeting 
 
SRIA Changes to DSM 
11-07-17 PB recommended approval 
11-30-17 BCC meeting 
 
Family Conveyance 
11-07-17 PB recommended approval 
12-14-17 BCC meeting 
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE 
PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 

PHONE: 850-595-3475 
FAX: 850-595-3481 

www.myescambia.com 



2 
 

REZONING CASES 
 
1. Rezoning Case Z-2017-06 

08-01-17 PB recommended denial 
09-07-17 BCC remanded (waiting on applicant) 

 
2.  Rezoning Case Z-2017-17 

11-0717 PB recommended placing case in abeyance until further actions 
are taken 

11-30-17 BCC meeting to drop 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR DECEMBER 2017 

(Revised 11/22/17)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing         T.H. = Transmittal Hearing          P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Tuesday, December 5, 2017  • SSA-2017-06  • Sunshine Law 
Presentation 

Tuesday, January 9, 2018 • DSM PAC Changes 
• CIP 

 • Z-2017-18  

Tuesday, February 6, 
2018?? 

    

Tuesday, March 6, 2018 ??     

Tuesday, April 3, 2018 ??     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current meeting 
agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 
 

** Residential Uses Ordinance – waiting on input from the County Attorney’s Office 
** Signs Ordinance – waiting on input from the BCC 
** CPA-2016-01 Extraction and Reclamation – on hold 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 12/05/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-06
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land
Use Map - SSA-2017-06

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioner (BCC) for
adoption, an ordinance amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map for a Small Scale
Amendment, SSA-2017-06.

BACKGROUND:
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of the county proposes to
change the FLU category of parcels Lot 1 0.1928 (+/-) acres and Lot 16 0.25 acres
totaling 0.4428 (+/-) acres of the Luzon Heights Subdivision, Plat Book 2, Page 5, from
Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U). The currently vacant parcels can be
accessed along approximately 165 feet of frontage on the east side of Navy Boulevard
and 121 feet on the North side of Mindoro Circle. Single-family homes adjoin the subject
parcels on the west currently with a FLU of MU-U and south side adjoining property has
a FLU of C. All adjoining properties have a zoning designation of Commercial (Com).

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith D. Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments
are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen



The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the Future Land Use
Map of the Comprehensive Plan and distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to
interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
SSA-2017-06
Draft Ordinance



 

 

 

 

 

SSA-2017-06 
 

 



GULF BEACH HWY

SM
ITH AV E

PLESS
AVE

PATTON DR

LEYTE DR

CHASE V ILLE ST
NAVY

EXCHANGE
RD

PA ULA
A VE

E SUNSETAVE

N
ME

RR
IT

T
ST

W SUNSET AVE

S 1ST
ST

ELL IS
D R

LI
NC

OL
N

RD

L O LA LN

N
NA

VY
BL

VD

CR
EA

RY
ST

S
OLD

CORRY
FIE LD

RD

W HI
TE

S T

M ANO R

DR

S
NAVY

BLVD
S

HA
RR

IS
ST

PLESSAVE

LIVE

OAK
AVE

TURNERDR

CL
AR

K AVE

DR U ID DR

E WINTHROP AVE

W WINTHROP AVE

MAGDA
AVE

E PALMETTO AVE

VALENCIA ST

COMMERCE ST

CROSBY

AVE

BRANDON
AVE

BARRANCAS AVE

M
O R ENO CT

N
NA

VY
BL

V D
S

1S
T

ST

IONA ST

NW SYRC LE DR

N
NA

VY
BL

VD

WISTERIA
AVE

OAK AVE

MORENO
CT

S
1ST

ST

POPPY
AVE

THAYERAVE

DEWITT
DR

SU
LU DR

BRYANT RD

TY
RO

NE ST

WILSON
AVE

DEXTER AVE

W HIGHWAY 98

FRISCO
RD

S 2ND ST

HA
WTHORN DR

COAST RD

PARK
DR

N
JA

MA
IC

A
ST

W HIGHWAY 98 LE XINGTONTER

BR IGADIER
ST

E D GE WATER DR

Parcel_Joined
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 840 1,680 2,520

Ft

SSA-2017-06
LOCATION AND WETLAND MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher



MINDORO CIR

PATTON DR

LEYTE DR

MI
ND

OR
O

CI
R

DRUID DR

RAYMOND ST

N
NA

VY
BL

VD
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

BRANDON AVE
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

SU
LU

 D
R Com

MDR
Com

Com MDR

Com

MDR

MDR

Com

Com

MDR

MDR

Com

Com

ComRec
Parcel_Joined_Buffer
Parcel_Joined
Parcel cama 2
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 170 340 510

Ft

SSA-2017-06
ZONING MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher



MINDORO CIR

PATTON DR

LEYTE DR

MI
ND

OR
O

CI
R

DRUID DR

RAYMOND ST

N
NA

VY
BL

VD
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

BRANDON

AVE
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

SU
LU

 D
R

C

MU-U

REC
Parcel_Joined_Buffer
Parcel_Joined
Parcel cama 2
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 170 340 510

Ft

SSA-2017-06
FLU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher



MINDORO CIR

PATTON DR

LEYTE DR

MI
ND

OR
O

CI
R

DRUID DR

RAYMOND ST

N
NA

VY
BL

VD
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

BRANDON

AVE
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

SU
LU

 D
R

C

MU-U

REC
Parcel_Joined_Buffer
Parcel_Joined
Parcel cama 2
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 170 340 510

Ft

SSA-2017-06
PROPOSED FLU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher

MU-U



MINDORO CIR

PATTON DR

LEYTE DR

MI
ND

OR
O

CI
R

DRUID DRN
NA

VY
BL

VD
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

BRANDON
AVE

N 
NA

VY
 B

LV
D

SU
LU

 D
R

Parcel_Joined_Buffer
Parcel_Joined
Parcel cama 2
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR

LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 170 340 510

Ft

SSA-2017-06
ELU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher

CHURCH
SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SFSF

STORE

VC

SFSF SF

SF

SF
SF

SF
SF

SFSFSFSFSFSFSFSFSFSFSF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF
SF

SF

SFSF SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF
SF

SF

SFSF

SF

SF

STORESF SF

SF
STORE

STORE

STORE

STORE

SF

SF
SF

SF

SF

BANK
STORE

WALMART

BANK

SF

SF

SF

STORE



MINDORO CIR

SU
LU

 D
R

N 
NA

VY
 B

LV
DN 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

Parcel_Joined
Parcel cama 2
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_2006

Escambia_2016_Aerials.ecw
RGB

Red:    Red
Green: Green
Blue:   Blue0 50 100 150

Ft

SSA-2017-06
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher



MINDORO CIR

PATTON DR

LEYTE DR

MI
ND

OR
O

CI
R

DRUID DR

RAYMOND ST

N
NA

VY
BL

VD
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

BRANDON

AVE
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

SU
LU

 D
R

WARRINGTON

Parcel_Joined
Parcel cama 2
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 170 340 510

Ft

SSA-2017-06
CRA DISTRICT WARRINGTON

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher

WARRINGTON OVERLAY



MINDORO CIR

PATTON DR

LEYTE DR

MI
ND

OR
O

CI
R

DRUID DR

RAYMOND ST

N
NA

VY
BL

VD
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

BRANDON

AVE
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

SU
LU

 D
R

AIPD 2

Parcel_Joined
Parcel cama 2
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 170 340 510

Ft

SSA-2017-06
AIPD 2 MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

John C Fisher

























































NORTHWEST FLORIDA LAND SURVEYING, INC.
7142 BELGIUM CIRCLE
Pensacola, FL 32526

(850) 432-1052

A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE ORGANIZATION

PREPARED FOR: BLUEWATER SIGNATURE HOMES

REQUESTED BY: BEAU BRYANT

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 313 NAVY BOULEVARD

JOB NO.: 10-21244-17

DATE: MARCH 6, 2017

SCALE: r=30'

i

MINDORC CIRCLE (5C RM)

•

SHEET 1 OF 2
«

BOUNDARY SURVEY
'MEASUREMENTS MADE TO UNITED STATES STANDARDS'

'

]

•

DESCRIPTION: LOTS 1 AND 16, BLOCK 3, LUZON HEIGHTS

SEC. 50 , TWP. 2S

RECORDED pLAT BOOK.
FIELD DATE: 3/3/17

_, RGE. 30W

2 . PAGE

ESCAMBIA

rST FLORIDA LAHD SURVEYING, INC.
FLOBite CO&^/fjON NUMBER 7277

3/6/n

•RED /?. THOMPSON PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
FLORIDA REGISTRATION NUMBER 3027 STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA.

. *THE ENCROACHMENTS ARE AS SHOWN'

FIELD BOOK: RM25 , PG. 24 .

REVISIONS:

P.C.: R" DRAFTED: J*S TYPED: J*S CHECKED: FRT

-V ;>-

'>^^VAkiD^\VlIKbUl THE
?" <c"S^GNATUR|T-.AND":-THE

5 ORlGlNAL-^RAISEb SEAL OF J
—"S ;'• A FLORIDA" LICENSED
S « -• PROFESSIONAL ..K





3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Development Services Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: November 2, 2017 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – SSA-2017-06 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Small Scale Amendment Case (SSA)-2017-06, 313 
Navy Boulevard, agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for December 
5th, 2017. Please see the below comments. 
 

Currently, there are no Roadway Improvement Projects programmed in either the 
Florida Department of Transportation’s 5-Year Work Program or County’s Capital 
Improvement Program within the vicinity of the subject parcel.  

 
Per the Florida-Alabama Transportation Planning Organization – Congestion 

Management Process Plan, the section of Navy Blvd. from SR292 (Barrancas Ave.) to 
New Warrington Road is functioning at a level-of-service (LOS) F with maximum 
allowable LOS D. This section of Navy Blvd. experiences about 34,250 trips/day with 
maximum allowable 32,400 trips/day.  

 
Any proposed access from Navy Blvd. would need FDOT permit approval. 
 
It appears that the applicant is requesting a multi-family dwelling development of 

some sort that would provide 8 residential units between the two lots. When considering 
the Institute of Technical Engineers (ITE) standard of 10 trips/day for residential family 
unit, the surrounding roadways could experience an additional 80+/- trips/day. 

 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 

comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 



PB 12-05-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-06 Page 1 
Staff Analysis 

Comprehensive Plan Small Scale Map Amendment  
Staff Analysis  

 
General Data 
Project Name:  SSA-2017-06  
Location:  313 Navy Boulevard & Mindoro Circle      
Parcel #:  50-2S-30-6070-016-003, 50-2S-30-6070-001-003 
Acreage:  0.4428 (+/-) acres 
Request:  From Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U)   
Agent:  Landry Leidner, Owner 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board: December 5, 2017 
   BCC: January 4, 2018 
 
Summary of proposed amendment 
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of the county proposes to 
change the FLU category of parcels Lot 1 0.1928± acres and Lot 16 0.25 acres totaling 
0.4428± acres of the Luzon Heights Subdivision Plat book 2 page 5, from Commercial 
(C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).  The currently vacant parcels can be accessed along 
approximately 165 feet of frontage on the east side of Navy Boulevard & 121 feet on the 
North side of Mindoro Circle. Single family homes adjoin the subject parcels on the west 
currently with a FLU of MU-U and south side adjoining property has a FLU of C. All 
adjoining properties have a zoning designation of Commercial (Com).  
The existing and proposed future land use categories are described in Comprehensive 
Plan policy FLU 1.3.1 and summarized as follows: 

Commercial.  The current Commercial FLU is intended for professional office, retail, 
wholesale, service, and general business trade, with residential development 
permitted only if secondary to a primary commercial development.  The listed range 
of allowable uses is residential, retail and services, professional office, light 
industrial, recreational facilities, public and civic.  Commercial FLU has a maximum 
residential density of 25 du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0.   
Mixed-Use Urban.  The proposed Mixed-Use Urban FLU is intended for an intense 
mix of residential and non-residential uses while promoting compatible infill 
development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses within the 
category as a whole.  The listed range of allowed uses is residential, retail and 
services, professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities, public and civic 
uses.  Mixed-Use Urban has a maximum residential density of 25 du/acre, a 
maximum FAR of 2.0 and a minimum non-residential FAR of 0.25. 



PB 12-05-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-06 Page 2 
Staff Analysis 

Land Development Code (LDC) FLU map amendment requirements 
Sec. 2-7.3 (e) Comprehensive Plan map amendments 
(3) Compliance review.   

a. General amendment conditions.  All amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
shall demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where an 
amendment is imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only 
demonstrate the conditions to the greatest extent practicable under that 
requirement: 
1. Need and benefit.  There is an identified land use need particular to the 

scope and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is 
clearly warranted. 

Analysis: The application letter states that the owners proposes construction of some 

type of multi-family housing project. Unlike the existing Commercial FLU, the proposed 

MU-U does not require residential development to be secondary to a primary 

commercial development.  Conversion to MU-U would eliminate the FLU dedication to 

commercial use and provide greater accommodation of residential uses within a mixed-

use environment.  

The “Data and Analysis Response” in the application there are two subject parcels with 

the same ownership for the FLUM small scale amendment application. The application 

regards potential multi-family development, the analysis makes several references to 

potential 2 buildings with 4 units each.  Multi-family residential is a permitted use within 

the existing Commercial zoning of the subject 0.4428±-acre parcels and not limited to a 

predominantly commercial development if within the requested MU-U FLU, but 

otherwise is limited to 25 du/acre for the parcel.  

Predominantly commercial development is development for which more than two-thirds 

of the development parcel area and more than two-thirds of all gross floor area 

within the parcel is devoted to commercial use. 

2. Professional practices.  The proposed amendment applies contemporary 
planning principles, engineering standards, and other professional practices 
to provide an effective and efficient remedy for the identified land use problem 
or need. 



PB 12-05-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-06 Page 3 
Staff Analysis 

Analysis:  Accepting multi-family residential use as the identified need, the proposed 

amendment applies appropriate planning principles by suggesting a replacement FLU 

that is both consistent with the proposed use and the same as most adjoining and 

surrounding property.  The application of other appropriate professional practices in 

potential multi-family development is addressed in the remaining sections of this 

analysis. 

b. FLUM amendment conditions.  In addition to the general amendment 
conditions, a future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses 
[required] by Florida Statute. 

Analysis: The proposed amendment complies with all four conditions established by 

Florida Statutes, §163.3187(1), for the adoption of any small scale comprehensive plan 

amendment:  

(a) The subject 0.4428± acre parcel is a use of 10 acres or fewer. 

(b) The amendment is the fourth proposed small scale amendment for calendar year 

2017 and will not exceed the cumulative maximum of 120 acres in a calendar year. 

(c) The proposed amendment does not involve a text change to the Comprehensive 

Plan, but only proposes a land use change to the Future Land Use Map for a site-

specific small scale development activity. 

(d) The property that is the subject of the proposed amendment is not within a 

designated area of critical state concern. 

 
Other applicable Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies 

1. Housing 

Policy HOU 1.1.1 Residential Areas.  The Escambia County FLUM and zoning 
maps will identify areas suitable for residential development and/or redevelopment. 

Analysis:  The proposed MU-U is a suitable replacement of the existing Commercial 

future land use to accommodate the suggested residential development, and is 

consistent with the FLU of the largely residential surrounding development. 



PB 12-05-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-06 Page 4 
Staff Analysis 

2. Future Land Use 

OBJ FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations 
Designate land uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, 
compact development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the 
protection and preservation of rural areas. 

Analysis:  Mixed-Use Urban, the applicable FLU for much of the land surrounding the 

subject parcel, would promote more mixed use and compact development for the 

subject parcel and be more likely to discourage urban sprawl than the current 

Commercial FLU. 

3. Infrastructure  
Policy HOU 1.1.4 Adequate infrastructure.  To assure the sustainability of 
residential communities, Escambia County will require new residential development 
to locate where adequate infrastructure is available. 

Analysis:  The application includes documentation of the general adequacy of potable 

water, wastewater, and solid waste services.  The site is located along a principal 

arterial road and within 1700 feet of a minor arterial Gulf Beach Hwy to the south and 

within 1900 feet of a principal arterial Highway 98.  Redevelopment of the subject parcel 

from the existing vacant parcel would promote the efficient use of this available 

infrastructure. 

GOAL CMS 1 Concurrency Management System 
Escambia County will adopt a Concurrency Management System to ensure that 
facilities and services needed to support development are available concurrent with 
the impacts of such development. The Concurrency Management System will be 
determined by the provisions of the LDC. 
Potable Water.   

Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer 
unless otherwise funded by the service provider. 
Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day. For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based 
upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service 



PB 12-05-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-06 Page 5 
Staff Analysis 

provider at the time of application. Escambia County will continue to work with the 
water providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

Sanitary Sewer.   
Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the 
peak LOS will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day. For 
nonresidential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon an Equivalent 
Residential Connection (ERC), as may be recalculated by the service provider 
from time to time, and on the size of the nonresidential water meter. Escambia 
County will continue to work with the water providers to ensure that adequate 
capacity is available. 
Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
unless ECUC has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service 
to the proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the 
ECUA wastewater system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant 
has obtained the appropriate permit from the Health Department. 

Solid Waste Disposal.   
Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste 
disposal needs of the entire County. 
Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 

Analysis:  Peoples Water Service Company of Florida, Inc. provides potable water 

distribution. The Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA) provides sanitary sewer 

collection and treatment, and solid waste collection and disposal for the subject parcel.  

The application includes a letter from Peoples Water Service Company of Florida, Inc., 

and ECUA stating that those services are currently available at the parcel for an 

unspecified demand. 

Stormwater Management. 

Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for 
such facilities as created by development or redevelopment through 
implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 



PB 12-05-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-06 Page 6 
Staff Analysis 

Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the 
responsibility of the developer. 

Transportation and Mobility.   
Policy MOB 1.1.2 On-site Facilities.  All new private development will be 
required to provide safe and convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the 
LDC.  
Policy MOB 1.1.7 Access Management.  Escambia County will promote access 
management by limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist experiences 
during travel, separating conflict points as much as possible when they cannot be 
eliminated, and controlling the turning movements to facilitate traffic flow on 
affected roadways.  

Analysis: Any redevelopment of the subject parcel is required to comply with the current 

stormwater management, onsite parking, site access, and other applicable development 

standards of the LDC.  County compliance review of any redevelopment plan would be 

required prior to plan approval.   

TTO Staff has reviewed the Small Scale Amendment Case (SSA)-2017-06, 313 

Navy Boulevard, agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for December 

5th, 2017. Please see the below comments. 

 

Currently, there are no Roadway Improvement Projects programmed in either the 

Florida Department of Transportation’s 5-Year Work Program or County’s Capital 

Improvement Program within the vicinity of the subject parcel.  

 

Per the Florida-Alabama Transportation Planning Organization – Congestion 

Management Process Plan, the section of Navy Blvd. from SR292 (Barrancas Ave.) to 

New Warrington Road is functioning at a level-of-service (LOS) F with maximum 

allowable LOS D. This section of Navy Blvd. experiences about 34,250 trips/day with 

maximum allowable 32,400 trips/day.  

 

Any proposed access from Navy Blvd. would need FDOT permit approval. 



PB 12-05-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-06 Page 7 
Staff Analysis 

 

It appears that the applicant is requesting a multi-family dwelling development of 

some sort that would provide 8 residential units between the two lots. When considering 

the Institute of Technical Engineers (ITE) standard of 10 trips/day for residential family 

unit, the surrounding roadways could experience an additional 80+/- trips/day. 

 

TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the comments 

above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development Review 

process.  

 

4. Protected Resources   
Wellheads.   

Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County shall provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current 
and future public water supplies. The provisions shall establish specific wellhead 
protection areas and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited 
activities and materials, within those areas. 

Analysis: The subject parcel is outside of any wellhead protection area. 

Historically Significant Sites.   
Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance. Escambia County shall utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in 
the identification of archaeological and/or historic sites or structures within the 
County.  The County will utilize guidance, direction and technical assistance 
received from this agency to develop provisions and regulations for the 
preservation and protection of such sites and structures. In addition, the County 
will utilize assistance from this agency together with other sources, such as the 
University of West Florida, in identifying newly discovered historic or 
archaeological resources. The identification will include an analysis to determine 
the significance of the resource. 

Analysis:  The applicant provided no confirmation of the presence or absence of 

historically significant sites. However, the applicant did provide documentation of a 

referenced request made to the Florida Master Site File Division of Historical 

Resources. Prior to any Development Order an historical analysis must be completed.   



PB 12-05-2017 
Re: SSA-2017-06 Page 8 
Staff Analysis 

Wetlands and Habitat. 
Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators. Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County 
Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
(FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands 
or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development approval. 

Urban Forest. 
Policy CON 1.6.4 Urban Forest Management. Escambia County will, through 
LDC provisions and other measures, sustain and promote the urban forest.  

Analysis: There are no indications from the available National Wetland Inventory map 

that wetlands are on the subject parcel.  There are indications from public record photos 

that the subject property likely contains protected trees.  Any future development will be 

analyzed for compliance with all applicable environmental regulations prior to the 

issuance of development plan approval. 





 

PB: 12-05-17 Page 1 
Re: SSA-2017-06 
Draft 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-___ 1 
 2 
 3 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART II OF 4 
THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE ESCAMBIA 5 
COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; AMENDING 6 
CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO 7 
PROVIDE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 FUTURE LAND USE MAP, 8 
CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORY OF TWO PARCELS WITHIN 9 
SECTION 50, TOWNSHIP 2S, RANGE 30W, PARCEL NUMBERS 6070-001-10 
003, AND PARCEL NUMBER 6070-016-003 TOTALING 0.4428 (+/-) ACRES, 11 
LOCATED ON NAVY BOULEVARD AND MINDORO CIRCLE, FROM 12 
COMMERCIAL (C) TO MIXED USE URBAN (MU-U) PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; 13 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 14 
CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  15 
 16 

 17 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted 18 
its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and  19 
 20 
WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 21 
Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce 22 
comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 23 
 24 
WHEREAS, the Navy Air Station (NAS) has Navy operations, therefore Escambia County 25 
Airfield Overlay density restrictions do apply; and 26 
 27 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 28 
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to approve changes 29 
(amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 30 
 31 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 32 
the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  33 
 34 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 35 
Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 36 
 37 
 38 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent 39 
 40 
This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 41 
authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 42 
Florida Statutes. 43 
 44 
 45 
Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 46 



 

PB: 12-05-17 Page 2 
Re: SSA-2017-06 
Draft 1 

 

 1 
This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Small Scale Amendment 2017-2 
06."   3 
 4 
Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 5 
 6 
The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 7 
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030, 8 
as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations, 9 
references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following 10 
future land use changes: 11 
 12 

A parcel within Section 50, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number 6070-13 
001-003, totaling 0.25 (+/-) acres, located on Mindoro Circle, and a parcel 14 
within Section 50, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number 6070-016-003, 15 
totaling 0.1928 (+/-) acres, located on Navy Boulevard as more particularly 16 
described in the Boundary Survey description produced by Northwest 17 
Florida Land Surveying, Inc., registered land surveyor Fred R. Thompson 18 
dated 03/06/2017, attached as Exhibit A, from Commercial (C) to Mixed Use 19 
Urban (MU-U).  20 

Section 4.     Severability 21 
 22 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 23 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 24 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 25 
 26 
Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 27 
 28 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 29 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the 30 
sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or 31 
relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other 32 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 



 

PB: 12-05-17 Page 3 
Re: SSA-2017-06 
Draft 1 

 

 1 
 2 
Section 6.  Effective Date  3 
 4 
Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c)(4), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become 5 
effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies Escambia 6 
County that the plan amendment package is complete.  If timely challenged, this 7 
Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or 8 
the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be in 9 
compliance.     10 
 11 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 12 
 13 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 14 
    OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 15 

 16 
  17 

      By: _________________________________ 18 
Jeff Bergosh, Chairman  19 

 20 
ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS 21 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 22 
 23 
 24 
By: ___________________________    25 

Deputy Clerk  26 
 27 
(SEAL) 28 
 29 
 30 
ENACTED: 31 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 32 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  33 



NORTHWEST FLORIDA LAND SURVEYING, INC.
7142 BELGIUM CIRCLE
Pensacola, FL 32526

(850) 432-1052

A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE ORGANIZATION

PREPARED FOR: BLUEWATER SIGNATURE HOMES

REQUESTED BY: BEAU BRYANT

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 313 NAVY BOULEVARD

JOB NO.: 10-21244-17

DATE: MARCH 6, 2017

SCALE: r=30'

i

MINDORC CIRCLE (5C RM)

•

SHEET 1 OF 2
«

BOUNDARY SURVEY
'MEASUREMENTS MADE TO UNITED STATES STANDARDS'

'

]

•

DESCRIPTION: LOTS 1 AND 16, BLOCK 3, LUZON HEIGHTS

SEC. 50 , TWP. 2S

RECORDED pLAT BOOK.
FIELD DATE: 3/3/17

_, RGE. 30W

2 . PAGE

ESCAMBIA

rST FLORIDA LAHD SURVEYING, INC.
FLOBite CO&^/fjON NUMBER 7277

3/6/n

•RED /?. THOMPSON PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
FLORIDA REGISTRATION NUMBER 3027 STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA.

. *THE ENCROACHMENTS ARE AS SHOWN'

FIELD BOOK: RM25 , PG. 24 .

REVISIONS:

P.C.: R" DRAFTED: J*S TYPED: J*S CHECKED: FRT

-V ;>-

'>^^VAkiD^\VlIKbUl THE
?" <c"S^GNATUR|T-.AND":-THE

5 ORlGlNAL-^RAISEb SEAL OF J
—"S ;'• A FLORIDA" LICENSED
S « -• PROFESSIONAL ..K

Exhibit A





   
Planning Board-Regular   7. A.           
Meeting Date: 12/05/2017  

Agenda Item:
CU Standards fo Mobile Homes in MDR Zoning Discussion.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance



 

 
PB: 12-05-2017 
Re: MH as CU 
Draft 1B 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2018-_______ 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 5 
AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 3, ZONING REGULATIONS, 6 
ARTICLE 3, MAINLAND DISTRICTS, SECTION 3-2.7 MEDIUM DENSITY 7 
RESIDENTIAL (MDR) AND AMENDING SECTION 3-2.8 HIGH DENSITY 8 
RESIDENTIAL (HDR) TO ESTABLISH CRITERIA UNDER WHICH 9 
MOBILE HOMES AND CERTAIN MANUFACTURED HOMES MAY BE 10 
AUTHORIZED AS CONDITIONAL USES WITHIN THESE  ZONING 11 
DISTRICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 12 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 13 
DATE. 14 

  15 

 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida 16 
Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed 17 
to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and   18 

 WHEREAS, through its Land Development Code, the Escambia County Board of 19 
County Commissioners has established regulations for the conditional use process in 20 
Chapter 2, the BOA may conditionally allow certain uses within the different zoning 21 
districts; and  22 

 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners finds that 23 
amendments to the Code are necessary and beneficial to the health, safety, and welfare 24 
of the community to establish conditions that allow mobile homes/manufactured homes 25 
as a conditional use within the MDR and HDR zoning districts. 26 

  27 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 28 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 29 

Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 30 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 3, Zoning Regulations, Article 2, Mainland districts, 31 
Section 3-2.7 Medium Density Residential is hereby amended as follows (words 32 
underlined are additions and words stricken are deletions): 33 

 34 

Sec. 3-2.7    Medium density residential district (MDR) 35 

(a) Purpose.  The Medium Density Residential (MDR) district establishes appropriate 36 
areas and land use regulations for residential uses at medium densities within 37 
suburban or urban areas.  The primary intent of the district is to provide for 38 
residential neighborhood development in an efficient urban pattern of well-connected 39 



 

 
PB: 12-05-2017 
Re: MH as CU 
Draft 1B 

 

streets and at greater dwelling unit density than the Low Density Residential district.  1 
Residential uses within the MDR district are limited to single-family and two-family 2 
dwellings.  The district allows non-residential uses that -are compatible with 3 
suburban and urban residential neighborhoods.  4 

(b) Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the MDR district are limited to the following: 5 

(1) Residential. 6 

a. Manufactured (mobile) homes only within manufactured home parks or 7 
subdivisions.  No new or expanded manufactured home parks, and new or 8 
expanded manufactured home subdivisions only on land zoned V-4 prior to 9 
adoption of MDR zoning. 10 

b. Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), detached and only 11 
one per lot, excluding accessory dwellings. Accessory dwellings only on lots 12 
one acre or larger.  Attached single-family dwellings and zero lot line 13 
subdivisions only on land zoned R-3 or V-4 prior to adoption of MDR zoning. 14 

c. Two-family dwellings only on land zoned R-3 or V-4 prior to adoption of MDR 15 
zoning, and multi-family dwellings up to four units per dwelling (quadruplex) 16 
only on land zoned V-4 prior to MDR zoning. 17 

See also conditional uses in this district. 18 

(1) Retail sales.  No retail sales. 19 

(2) Retail services.  No retail services.  See conditional uses in this district. 20 

(3) Public and civic.  Public utility structures, excluding telecommunications towers. 21 
See also conditional uses in this district. 22 

(4) Recreation and entertainment. 23 

a. Marinas, private. 24 

b. Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting. 25 

See also conditional uses in this district. 26 

(5) Industrial and related.  No industrial or related uses. 27 

(6) Agricultural and related. Agricultural production limited to food primarily for 28 
personal consumption by the producer, but no farm animals.  See also 29 
conditional uses in this district. 30 

(7) Other uses. [reserved] 31 

(c) Conditional uses.  Through the conditional use process prescribed in Chapter 2, 32 
the BOA may conditionally allow the following uses within the MDR district: 33 

(1) Residential. 34 

a. Accessory dwellings on lots less than one acre. 35 

b. Mobile homes (manufactured homes) meeting the following criteria: 36 



 

 
PB: 12-05-2017 
Re: MH as CU 
Draft 1B 

 

1. Minimum lot size of one acre.  1 

2. Lot may not be located within a platted subdivision. 2 

3. Use may not otherwise be prohibited by any overlay district.  3 

4. Front setback must be a minimum of 40 feet. 4 

5. Must be on a conforming lot or lot of record 5 

6. Only one MH allowed per lot 6 

c. Group living, excluding residential facilities providing substance abuse 7 
treatment, post-incarceration reentry, or similar services. 8 

d. Home occupations with non-resident employees. 9 

e. Townhouses not among the permitted uses of the district. 10 

(2) Retail services.  Boarding and rooming houses.  11 

(3) Public and civic.  12 

a. Clubs, civic and fraternal.  13 

b. Educational facilities, excluding preschools or kindergartens independent 14 

of other elementary grades.  15 

c. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, firefighting, and 16 

medical assistance.  17 

d. Offices for government agencies or public utilities, small scale (gross floor 18 

area 6,000 square feet or less per lot).  19 

e. Places of worship.  20 

f. Public utility structures exceeding the district structure height limit, 21 

excluding telecommunications towers.  22 

(4)  Recreation and entertainment.  23 

a. Golf courses, tennis centers, swimming pools and similar active outdoor 24 

recreational facilities, including associated country clubs.  25 

b. Parks with permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.  26 

(5) Agricultural and related. Horses or other domesticated equines kept on site, and 27 

stables for such animals, only as a private residential accessory with a minimum 28 

lot area of two acres and a maximum of one animal per acre.  29 



 

 
PB: 12-05-2017 
Re: MH as CU 
Draft 1B 

 

Section 2.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 1 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 3, Zoning Regulations, Article 2, Mainland districts, 2 
Section 3-2.8, High Density Residential, is hereby amended as follows (words 3 
underlined are additions and words stricken are deletions): 4 

(a)  Purpose. The high density residential (HDR) district establishes appropriate areas 5 
and land use regulations for residential uses at high densities within urban areas. The 6 
primary intent of the district is to provide for residential neighborhood development in 7 
an efficient urban pattern of well-connected streets and at greater dwelling unit 8 
density and diversity than the medium density residential district. Residential uses 9 
within the HDR district include most forms of single-family, two-family and multifamily 10 
dwellings. Nonresidential uses within the district are limited to those that are 11 
compatible with urban residential neighborhoods.  12 

(b)  Permitted uses. Permitted uses within the HDR district are limited to the following:  13 

(1)  Residential.  14 

a. Group living, excluding dormitories, fraternity and sorority houses, and 15 
residential facilities providing substance abuse treatment, post-incarceration 16 
reentry, or similar services.  17 

b. Manufactured (mobile) homes only within existing manufactured home parks 18 
or subdivisions. No new or expanded manufactured home parks or 19 
subdivisions.  20 

c. Single-family dwellings (other than manufactured homes), attached or 21 
detached, including townhouses and zero lot line subdivisions.  22 

d. Two-family and multifamily dwellings. See also conditional uses in this district.  23 
 24 

(2)  Retail sales. No retail sales, except as conditional uses in this district.  25 

(3)  Retail services.  26 

a.  Boarding and rooming houses.  27 
b.  Child care facilities.  28 

See also conditional uses in this district.  29 

(4)     Public and civic. Public utility structures, excluding telecommunications towers.  30 
See also conditional uses in this district.  31 

(5)  Recreation and entertainment.  32 

a.  Marina, private.  33 
b.  Parks without permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.  34 

See also conditional uses in this district.  35 
 36 

(6)  Industrial and related. No industrial or related uses.  37 



 

 
PB: 12-05-2017 
Re: MH as CU 
Draft 1B 

 

(7)     Agricultural and related. Agricultural production limited to food primarily for 1 
personal consumption by the producer, but no farm animals. See also conditional 2 
uses in this district.  3 

(8)  Other uses. [Reserved.]  4 

(c)  Conditional uses. Through the conditional use process prescribed in chapter 2, the 5 
BOA may conditionally allow the following uses within the HDR district:  6 

(1)  Residential.  7 

a.  Dormitories.  8 
b.  Fraternity or sorority houses.  9 
c.  Home occupations with nonresident employees.  10 

 11 
d. Mobile homes (manufactured homes) meeting the following criteria: 12 

1. Minimum lot size of one acre.  13 

2. Lot may not be located within a platted subdivision. 14 

3. Use may not otherwise be prohibited by any overlay district. 15 

4. Front setback must be a minimum of 40 feet.  16 

5. Must be on a conforming lot or lot of record 17 

6. Only one MH allowed per lot 18 

(2)  Retail sales. Retail sales only within a predominantly residential multi-story 19 
building.  20 

(3)  Retail services. Retail services only within a predominantly residential multi-21 
story building.  22 

(4)  Public and civic.  23 

a. Clubs, civic and fraternal.  24 
b. Educational facilities, excluding preschools or kindergartens 25 

independent of other elementary grades.  26 
c. Emergency service facilities, including law enforcement, firefighting, 27 

and medical assistance.  28 
d. Hospitals.  29 
e. Offices for government agencies or public utilities, small scale (gross 30 

floor area 6,000 square feet or less per lot).  31 
f. Places of worship.  32 
g. Public utility structures exceeding the district structure height limit, 33 

excluding telecommunications towers.  34 
(5)  Recreation and entertainment.  35 



 

 
PB: 12-05-2017 
Re: MH as CU 
Draft 1B 

 

a. Golf courses, tennis centers, swimming pools and similar active 1 
outdoor recreational facilities, including associated country clubs.  2 

b. Parks with permanent restrooms or outdoor event lighting.  3 
 4 

(6)  Agricultural and related. Horses or other domesticated equines kept on 5 
site, and stables for such animals, only as a private residential accessory with a 6 
minimum lot area of two acres and a maximum of one animal per acre.  7 

 8 

Section 3. Severability. 9 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 10 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 11 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 12 

 13 

Section 4. Inclusion in Code.  14 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 15 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2017); and that the sections, 16 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered and 17 
the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “chapter,” or such other appropriate 18 
word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 19 

 20 

Section 5. Effective Date.  21 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 22 

 23 

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2018. 24 

 25 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 26 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 27 

  28 

    By: _______________________________ 29 

Jeff Bergosh, Chairman 30 

 31 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             32 

    Clerk of the Circuit Court 33 

 34 

  By: __________________________    35 



 

 
PB: 12-05-2017 
Re: MH as CU 
Draft 1B 

 

Deputy Clerk  1 

(SEAL) 2 

 3 

ENACTED: 4 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    5 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  6 



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. B.           
Meeting Date: 12/05/2017  

Agenda Item:
Signs Discussion.

Attachments
Summary of Sign Revisions



 

Proposed Revisions to LDC Sign Regulations 

Why are revisions proposed? 
Revisions to the sign provisions of the LDC began as part of the overall code 
replacement, but the schedule for that adoption did not allow adequate involvement of 
the local sign industry, the Santa Rosa Island Authority, Code Enforcement, and other 
interested parties. 

The subsequent 2015 finding of the U.S. Supreme Court in Reed vs. Town of Gilbert, 
Arizona confirmed that the county’s sign regulations were not sufficiently content or 
viewpoint neutral.  A central purpose of the revisions is to respond to the increasing 
legal scrutiny of sign regulation.  As a general rule, regulation is suspect if a sign has to 
be read to determine if the regulation applies to it. 

The sign ordinance is intended to provide the required neutrality and remedy as many 
other known deficiencies of current provisions as is practical.  The ordinance will 
primarily be a replacement of Article 8 in LDC Chapter 5.   

What will the revisions include? 
Significant changes within the proposed sign regulations will include: 

• Signs defined by message (e.g., “real estate,” “off premises,” and “political” signs) 
and other content-based provisions to be removed.   

• On-premises and off-premises signs functionally to be redefined as accessory and 
non-accessory structures respectively. 

• Parcel-based exemptions from sign permits will allocate a functional amount of 
exempt signage to every parcel for temporary or permanent signs separately from 
non-exempt signs. 

• Signs that cannot be viewed from public rights-of-way and other public lands to be 
exempt from sign permits. 

• Permits only to be required for larger forms of temporary signs. 
• The allocation of available wall sign area to be separated from freestanding sign 

area. 
• Technical criteria to be included to evaluate the need for requested sign variances. 
• Some allowances to be made for the value remaining in sign structures of 

nonconforming height. 
• Sign industry model code provisions and other recommendations to be incorporated. 
• Definitions to be provided more directly within the context of the article and reduced 

to those essential to the regulations. 
 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft November 7, 2017 Planning Board Rezoning Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Draft November 7, 2017 Planning Board Regular Meeting Minutes
	Att3_Monthly Action Follow-Up
	Att4_Six Month Outlook
	PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE
	SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR DECEMBER 2017

	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land Use Map - SSA-2017-06
	Att1_SSA-2017-06
	SSA-2017-06
	Location/Wetland Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	CRA Map
	AIPD2 Map
	Photos
	Application
	Letter of Request
	Proof of Ownership
	Applicant's Data and Analysis
	Maps Provided by Applicant
	Site Plan
	Peoples Water Service Company
	ECUA Letter
	Boundary Survey
	TTO Comments
	Staff Analysis

	Att2_Draft Ordinance
	CU Standards fo Mobile Homes in MDR Zoning Discussion
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	Signs Discussion
	Att1_Summary of Sign Revisions

